
MAYOR LINDA GORTON TODD SLATIN  

DIRECTOR

PROCUREMENT

200 East Main St., Lexington, KY 40507 / 859.258.3320 Phone / 859.258.3322 Fax / lexingtonky.gov

ADDENDUM #1

Bid Number:  #23-2025 Date:  February 18, 2025

Subject: Sewer Collection System Odor Control Chemical Pilot Testing
Address inquiries to: 
Brian Marcum
(859) 258-3320

TO ALL PROSPECTIVE SUBMITTERS:

Please be advised of the following clarifications to the above referenced Bid:

1. The electronic bid opening date has been extended to March 11, 2025, at 2:00 PM EST in 
Ionwave.

2. The non-mandatory prebid meeting is in person and has been changed to February 26, 
2025 at 10:00 AM EST 301 Jimmie Campbell Drive Lexington, Kentucky, due to 
impending weather.

                                                                                                                                                                                                              
Todd Slatin, Director

                      Division of Procurement

All other terms and conditions of the Bid and specifications are unchanged.
This letter should be signed, attached to and become a part of your Bid.

COMPANY NAME: USP Technologies 
__________________________________________________________

ADDRESS: _5640 Cox Road Glen Allen, VA 23060 
______________________________________________________________

SIGNATURE OF BIDDER: ___________________________________________________



MAYOR LINDA GORTON TODD SLATIN  

DIRECTOR

PROCUREMENT

200 East Main St., Lexington, KY 40507 / 859.258.3320 Phone / 859.258.3322 Fax / lexingtonky.gov

ADDENDUM #2

Bid Number:  #23-2025 Date:  February 28, 2025

Subject: Sewer Collection System Odor Control Chemical Pilot Testing
Address inquiries to: 
Brian Marcum
(859) 258-3320

TO ALL PROSPECTIVE SUBMITTERS:

Please be advised of the following clarifications to the above referenced Bid:

1. The electronic bid opening date has been extended to March 18, 2025, at 2:00 PM EST in
Ionwave.

Attached Prebid Powerpoint
Attached Prebid Sign in Sheet

Todd Slatin, Director  
Division of Procurement

All other terms and conditions of the Bid and specifications are unchanged.
This letter should be signed, attached to and become a part of your Bid.

COMPANY NAME:__________________________________________________________

ADDRESS: _______________________________________________________________

SIGNATURE OF BIDDER: ___________________________________________________



Lexington-Fayette Urban County 
Government

Invitation to Bid #23-2025 
Sewer Collection System Odor Control Chemical Pilot Testing

Pre-Bid Meeting   02/26/2025

1



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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Introductions

• Rick Bowman, Odor Control Manager, City of  Lexington

• Sharon Worley, Senior Engineer, Webster Environmental Associates

• Brian Marcum, Procurement Officer Sr., Division of  Procurement

• Sherita Miller, Minority Business Enterprise Liaison, Division of  
Procurement



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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General Explanation: What and Why
• Lexington has long sewage force mains that promote the formation of  odor 

causing compounds.

• Lexington currently feeds a nitrate-based chemical at nine pump stations –
results are a “mixed bag”.

• Lexington wants to evaluate a variety of  products to determine the most cost-
effective approach in the reduction of  odor/corrosion causing compounds.

• Lexington wants to evaluate feeding chemicals at different locations, including 
on long force mains using multiple feed locations.  



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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Expected Outcome From This Advertisement
• All viable proposals will be accepted as a pre-qualified chemical (meaning that 

chemicals can be tested without further procurement paperwork).

• Viable chemical applications will be considered for pilot testing, with testing to 
begin in 2025 and continue indefinitely.

• Peak odor season is July 1 to November 1  - pilot testing likely limited to that 
timeframe.

• Given the limited testing timeframe and potential number of  responders, there is 
no guarantee that your product will be tested in 2025 or in the future.



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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What Makes a Proposal “Viable”?
• Documented experience in the municipal or industrial wastewater odor 

control sector.

• References in the municipal or industrial wastewater odor control 
sector that can be verified by Lexington.

• Verification that chemical applications proposed will not upset the 
treatment biological processes.

• NOTE: A separate proposal is required for each product.
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Proposed Plan for Pilot Testing
2025 Goal - Pilot test at least four different proposer’s applications.  Tentative plan:

South Elkhorn force main
• Test One -    7/1/25 to 7/30/25 
• Test Two -    8/15/25 to 9/15/25
• Test Three - 10/1/25 to 10/30/25

Lower Cane Run force main
• Test One -    7/1/25 to 7/30/25 
• Test Two -    8/15/25 to 9/15/25
• Test Three - 10/1/25 to 10/30/25

FM Length

feet inches gpd hours

South Elkhorn 2500 Bowman Mill Rd DI 33,730 36 24 4,000,000 11

Lower Cane Run 1760 Mc Grathiana Pkwy DI 24,260 30 9 1,100,000 19

Ave 
Detention 

TimePS Name PS Address
FM 

Material

FM 
Diameter No. of ARVs

PS Ave 
Daily Flow



Scope of Work for Pilot Tests
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LFUCG expects to provide:
- Flat gravel area (approximately 13’ x 18’)
- At Pump Stations:

- Power at SE and LCR PSs: two 115V circuits (one 15-20 AMP, one 20-25 AMP)
- Power at other PSs: 115 VAC, 60Hz, 1 phase
- Access to wet wells

- At Midpoint on SE FM:
- Two SS 1” diameter taps into the force main each with a shutoff  valve and a check valve

Vendor to provide:
- Chemical delivery to feed site
- Equipment/materials for safe chemical storage, handling, feeding, & control
- Labor to include mob/demob, maintenance, sampling and monitoring
- Reports



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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Division of Procurement Comments

SCHEDULE
Bid Close Date: 3/11/2025 2:00 PM (ET)                 
Questions Cut Off: 3/3/2025 4:00 PM (ET)                   
ALL questions must be submitted via Ionwave

• Award Notices Issued Upon Evaluation Completion & Council Approval

• Pilot Testing Begins – see prior slide

• All submittals and all required information must be submitted 
electronically in Ionwave, please include all DBE forms completed, and 
Good Faith Efforts documented.



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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QUESTIONS





MAYOR LINDA GORTON TODD SLATIN  

DIRECTOR

CENTRAL PURCHASING

200 East Main St., Lexington, KY 40507 / 859.258.3320 Phone / 859.258.3322 Fax / lexingtonky.gov

ADDENDUM  No. 3

Bid Number:  #23-2025 Date:  March 10, 2025

Subject: Sewer Collection System Odor Control Chemical
Pilot Testing Address inquiries to: 

Q&A Module on Ion Wave

Brian Marcum
brianm@lexingtonky.gov
(859) 258-3325

TO ALL PROSPECTIVE SUBMITTERS:

Please be advised of the following modifications to the above referenced Bid:

Please see the attached questions and answers.

Todd Slatin, Director
  Division of Central Purchasing

All other terms and conditions of the Bid and specifications are unchanged.
This letter should be signed, attached to and become a part of your Bid.

COMPANY NAME: __________________________________________________________

ADDRESS: _______________________________________________________________

SIGNATURE OF BIDDER: ___________________________________________________
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Division of Water Quality 
125 Lisle Industrial Ave., Suite 180 

Lexington, KY 40511 

Bid #23-2025 ODOR CONTROL CHEMICALS PILOT STUDY 

# SUPPLIER SUBMITTED QUESTIONS LFUCG RESPONSE 

1 

Is the odor control required AT the two sites mentioned OR
downstream from them?

If needed at the two sites, are there stations just ahead that
flow into each?

The chemical would be fed at the PS and may also be fed at the
midpoint.

A schematic of the two FMs is provided in Appendix A.

2 Are Lower Cane Run and South Elkhorn in series with each
other?

No, they are not in series with each other. See Appendix A.

3 

Will the City use the chemical unit trial price stated here for
the trial to be the permanent application price used to award
for trial? Less than bulk deliveries affect delivery costs, the
trial price is typically higher than a permanent application
bulk delivered price.

Chemical unit trial price would apply only to the specified pilot testing.
If any odor control chemicals are to be used by LFUCG for long term
solutions, those chemicals would be procured under a separate
contract.

4 How soon must the trials start, after award? Proposed schedule for pilot testing was included in Addendum 1.

5 What is the procedure to get subcontractor approval?

6 

Is there regular FOG control done (mechanical or chemical),
due to blankets forming at the stations or at the plant?

If so, is it much more at these stations, and downstream of
them, than the rest of the collection system?

Wet Wells are scheduled to be cleaned at LCR-monthly, SELK-
Quarterly, Sandersville-Bi-yearly.

Lexington’s FOG control in pump station wet wells is handled
mechanically, no chemical methods are used.

7 How much of the total flow to the WWTP does the flow at
South Elkhorn represent?

The SE PS contributes roughly 20% of the flow to the West Hickman
WWTP.

8 Is there alkalinity addition or caustic trimming at the effluent
of the plant?

No, there is not.
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# SUPPLIER SUBMITTED QUESTIONS LFUCG RESPONSE 

9  Are you, WWTP dosing chemicals for supplemental 
carbon? 

 No 

10  What was the monthly Nitra-NOx feed rate at South Elkhorn 
PS and Lower Cane PS?  See Appendix B 

11

 May we have access to H2S data (liquid and vapor) at 
current control points?  

 If not, what are the annual ranges and averages of vapor 
H2S and aqueous sulfide loadings at the control points 

 See Appendix B 

12  What is your current price for Nitra Nox?  This information is not needed for vendors to respond to this RFP. 

13  What was the 2024 annual treatment spend on both lines in 
question? 

 This information is not needed for vendors to respond to this RFP. 

14  Bid Conditions II, L requires a bid bond. What is the percent 
of the bid price required? Document states "XX percent". 

 A bid bond is not required for this Bid.   

15 
 Lower Cane Run: Can you provide a map of the LCR 

forcemain as well as the ARV locations and discharge 
point? 

 A schematic of the two FMs is provided in Appendix A. 

16 

 LCR: Is there odor control coming into this Class A station?  

 What chemical(s) are being used?  

 What is the average daily feed rate? 

 Odor control chemical is fed at the LCR PS and also at the upstream 
Horse Park PS. 

 Nitrates.  

 See Appendix B 

17 

 LCR: Are there historical sulfide readings from the influent 
wetwell that can be provided? 

 Residual Nitrate?  

 pH? 

 No, LFUCG does not have historical sulfide, Residual Nitrate, and/or 
pH readings from the influent wetwell for LCR 

18 

 LCR: Are there historical sulfide readings from the 
discharge point or ARV’s that can be provided?  

 Residual Nitrate?  

 pH?  

 Hydrogen sulfide graphs? 

 See Appendix B   

     



3 
 

# SUPPLIER SUBMITTED QUESTIONS LFUCG RESPONSE 

19 
 Could you provide a system schematic for both Forcemains 

to be treated showing any potential sidestream flow 
contributors? 

 Please refer to Appendix A included with this Addendum. 

20 

 LCR: Are there any odor complaints coming from this 
Forcemain?  

 If Yes, where are the main pain points?  

 Are there other contributing forcemains to consider for odor 
complaints nearby? 

 Yes.   

 LCR_ARV 8 has been a source of odor complaints. 

 A schematic of the two FMs (including contributing FMs) is provided in 
Appendix A . 

21  What type of pump operation do SE, LCR, and Sandersville 
employ? (ON/OFF or more constant flow on VFDs) 

SELK: Has VFD’s. During the day it consistently runs and alternates 
pumps every 4 hours. During Low flows (overnight) Pumps cycle ON & 
off, see Appendix C.  

 LCR: Has 2 large constant speed pumps for wet weather events and 2 
smaller pumps that run on VFD’s. Normal operation VFD’s running 
always and switching pumps every 8 hours, see Appendix D. 

 Sandersville: Has 2 pumps running off across the line starters. Runs 
ON/OFF depending on flow, see Appendix E. 

22  Is there detailed flow information available to view hourly 
variability in flows from the prospective dosing locations? 

 Addressed in response to item #21. 

23  Sandersville PS: What is the Average daily flow?  Avg 60 mins of run time, Avg 615 gpm, Avg gpd 36,900.  

24 
 Could you provide flow data for Sandersville Pump Station? 

 Could you provide pipe distance/diameter information? 

 See response to item #23. 

 6” FM from Sandersville PS to LCR FM Tie in, 32FT 

25  Sandersville: What are the forcemain dimensions? (Length, 
diameter) 

 See response to item #24. 

26  Will there be an analog sewage flow signal available to 
connect to feed systems installed at pump stations? 

 LFUCG does not believe it is necessary to tie in to “flow signal” to do 
chemical pilot as we are dripping chemical at all three sites in well 
(Sandersville) or first incoming manhole into station (LCR, SELK) . 
There is a 4-20ma signal Loop at SELK and LCR for Level and to turn 
pumps on and off.  SELK and LCR have OUT going Strap on flow 
meters but as of now, service is spotty at best. Sandersville has 
nothing. 

27  Will there be specified monitoring locations (control points) 
Discharge locations, i.e., manhole, wet well? 

 Yes, the discharge MH and intermediate ARVs. 
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# SUPPLIER SUBMITTED QUESTIONS LFUCG RESPONSE 

28  Sandersville: What are the pump run times (starts and draw 
down times)? 

 See response to item #23 and see Appendix E and Appendix F 

29 

 What are the treatment goals for performance on these 
lines?  

 Will there be both liquid phase sulfide treatment goals in 
addition to vapor phase treatment goals? 

 Specific goals have not yet been established but looking for most 
effective means of controlling odors and corrosion. 

 Yes. 

30  Sandersville: Are there odor complaints near where this ties 
into the LCR forcemain? 

 None documented. 

31 

 Sandersville: Are there historical sulfide readings from the 
influent wetwell that can be provided? 

 Residual Nitrate? 

 pH? 

 No, LFUCG does not have historical sulfide, Residual Nitrate, and/or 
pH readings from the influent wetwell for the Sandersville Pump 
Station 

32 

 Will products that are considered “hazardous materials” be 
considered for treatment in these pilots?  

 Will temporary safety water supply setups be acceptable at 
locations where there is not currently access to water? 

 Yes, but as stated in the RFP: “Services shall be provided in a safe, 
secure, effective, and efficient manner and in accordance with all 
applicable laws, rules, and regulations.” 

 Yes as long as the water supply meets the safety requirements for the 
product. 

33 
 Is LFUCG mostly concerned with Odor Complaints or is 

there also a concern for corrosion control to protect 
infrastructure? 

 RFP states: “The work consists of providing all necessary materials, 
chemicals, personnel, equipment, and services for pilot testing of odor 
and corrosion control chemicals in LFUCG’s wastewater collection 
system.” 

34 
 Will LFUCG be available to make the physical chemical 

discharge connection on the force main injection 
connection(s)? 

 LFUCG will provide the “tap,” each selected Vendor/Bidder will be 
required to make the physical chemical discharge connection of their 
equipment to the provided tap 

35 
 Will LFUCG be sharing RFP results with other vendors? 

 Will LFUCG be sharing Pilot Data Reports with other 
vendors? 

 Results to be posted on ionwave. 

 No. 

36 

 How will efficacy of different treatments be evaluated over 
the time frame of the testing? Meaning different pilot periods 
may experience drastically different weather conditions and 
wastewater temperatures, resulting in differing demand in 
the system. 

 Differing conditions will be taken into account in the evaluation. 
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APPENDIX A 
LOWER CANE RUN and SOUTH ELKHORN FORCE MAIN 

SCHEMATICS
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APPENDIX B  
SOUTH ELKHORN and LOWER CANE RUN MONITORING DATA 
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SOUTH ELKHORN and LOWER CANE RUN MONITORING DATA

302 gpd
43 ppm

431 ppm
302 gpd

$/d

CONTROL POINT SENSITIVITY?

Ave H2S
Max H2S

2025 Ave Dose
2025 Ave Cost

Motus iDS

WH1_944   (2 - medium low sensitivity)
OTHER INFO:

Summary for JANUARY '25:
Dosage  

(Control Point: WH1_944 - has not changed .)  
Note: ARV 15 is the high point.

0
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600
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900
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0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
500

South Elkhorn PS - Chemical Dosages vs H2S

Chemical Dosage Average H2S

Highest Ave 
H2S = 817 ppm

Max H2S > 1100 ppm       
Jul - Dec '23, Jul & Aug 

'24 & Dec '24

Nitrates off  9/9 -10/1/24. 
Other Chem tested.

134 gpd
3 ppm

81 ppm
134 gpd

$/d

Summary for JANUARY '25:

LCR_ARV8 
OTHER INFO:

CONTROL POINT SENSITIVITY?

(Control Point: LCR_ARV8 since 8/14/24.  

2025 Ave Dose
2025 Ave Cost

Motus iDS

Dosage  
Ave H2S
Max H2S

0
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0

20
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Lower Cane Run PS - Chemical Dosages vs H2S

Dosages Average H2S

Max H2S = 1100 
(Sep '24)

Highest Ave H2S = 144 
(Sep '24)

LCR_ ARV9 ARV 
5

LCR_ ARV8
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APPENDIX C  
SOUTH ELKHORN PS PUMP RUN CYCLES 
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SOUTH ELKHORN PS PUMP RUN CYCLES
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APPENDIX D  
LOWER CANE RUN PS PUMP RUN CYCLES 
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LOWER CANE RUN PS PUMP RUN CYCLES
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APPENDIX E  
SANDERSVILLE PS PUMP RUN CYCLES 



14

SANDERSVILLE PS PUMP RUN CYCLES
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APPENDIX F  
SANDERSVILLE PS DRAW DOWN DATA 
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SANDERSVILLE PS DRAW DOWN DATA



Bid 23-2025 Addendum 3

USP Technologies

Supplier Response

Event Information

Number: Bid 23-2025 Addendum 3
Title: Sewer Collection System Odor Control Chemical Pilot Testing
Type: Competitive Bid
Issue Date: 2/11/2025
Deadline: 3/18/2025 02:00 PM (ET)

Contact Information

Contact: Brian Marcum
Address: Central Purchasing

Government Center Building
200 East Main Street
Lexington, KY 40507

Phone: (859) 2583320
Fax: (859) 2583322
Email: brianm@lexingtonky.gov

Vendor: USP Technologies Bid 23-2025 Addendum 3Page 1 of 2 pages



USP Technologies Information

Contact: Moneke Gibbs
Address: 1375 Peachtree Street NE

Suite 300N
Atlanta
Atlanta, GA 30309

Phone: (470) 583-1100
Email: mgibbs@usptechnologies.com

ONLY ONLINE BIDS WILL BE ACCEPTED! By submitting your response, you certify that you are authorized to represent
and bind your company and that you agree to all bid terms and conditions as stated in the attached
bid/RFP/RFQ/Quote/Auction documents.

Moneke Gibbs mgibbs@usptechnologies.com
Signature Email

Submitted at 3/18/2025 12:22:33 PM (ET)

Response Attachments

USP Technologies Response IFB# 23-2025.pdf

USP Technologies Response

Addendum#1 - USP Signed.pdf

Acknowledge Addenda 1

Addendum#2 - USP Signed.pdf

Acknowledge Addenda 2

Addendum#3 - USP Signed.pdf

Acknowledge Addenda 3

Bid Lines

1 Equipment plus Mobilization / Demobilization Price
($/site)
 

Quantity: 1 UOM: Lump Sum Price: $10,000.00 Total: $10,000.00

Supplier Notes: All Proposed USP chemical trials will have a $10,000/site mobilization fee

2 Chemical Solution Unit Price Per Gallon

Quantity: 1 UOM: Gallon Price: $3.98 Total: $3.98

Supplier Notes: The portal will not allow us to submit multiple chemistries. For clarity: Ferrous Chloride -
$3.98/gallon Sulfelox - $7.97/gallon

3 Chemical Solution Unit Price Per Pound

Quantity: 1 UOM: Pounds No Bid

Response Total: $10,003.98

Vendor: USP Technologies Bid 23-2025 Addendum 3Page 2 of 2 pages



Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
IFB#: 23-2025

Sewer Collection System Odor Control Chemical Pilot Testing

usptechnologies.com 

USP Technologies 

5640 Cox Road Glen Allen, VA 23060
Phone:  804-935-2542 info@usptechnologies.com

March 18, 2025
Contact: 

Voice: 

Email:   

Sammy Kohl
202-768-0851
skohl@usptechnologies.com
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Lexington, Kentucky
Horse Capital of the World

Date of Issue: February 11, 2025

Address:  All bids must be submitted on line at https://lexingtonky.ionwave.net/

Type of Bid: Price Contract

Pre Bid Meeting:   (Non mandatory) Pre Bid Time: 
Address:   

Sealed bids will ONLY be received online at https://lexingtonky.ionwave.net/ until , prevailing local time on .  Bids must 
be submitted/uploaded by the above-mentioned date and time.  

Bids are to include all shipping, handling and associated fees to the point of delivery (unless otherwise specified in the bid documents below)
located at:   Various Locations, Lexington, KY 

Bid Specifications Met ___     Exceptions to Bid Specifications. __     days after 
acceptance of bid.

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government may be using Procurement Cards to purchase goods and 
services and also to make payments. Will you accept Procurement Cards?                                     Yes                 No

Submitted by:

________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________

Division of Procurement

X
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The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government is committed to protecting our environment and being fiscally 
responsible to our citizens.

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government mandates the use of Energy Star compliant products if they 
are available in the marketplace (go to ).  If these products are available, but not 
submitted in your pricing, your bid will be rejected as non-compliant. 

ENERGY STAR is a government program that offers businesses and consumers energy-efficient solutions, making 
it easy to save money while protecting the environment for future generations.

Key Benefits

These products use 25 to 50% less energy
Reduced energy costs without compromising quality or performance
Reduced air pollution because fewer fossil fuels are burned
Significant return on investment
Extended product life and decreased maintenance

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government is also committed to using other environmentally    friendly 
products that do not negatively impact our environment.  Green Seal is a non-profit organization devoted to 
environmental standard setting, product certification, and public education. 

Go to to find available certified products. These products will have a reduced impact on 
the environment and on human health.  The products to be used must be pre-approved by the LFUCG prior to 
commencement of any work in any LFUCG facility.  If a Green Seal product is not available, the LFUCG must 
provide a signed waiver to use an alternate product.  Please provide information on the Green Seal products 
being used with your bid response. 

A. No bid may be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) days after the date and time set for opening.

B. No bid may be altered after the date and time set for opening.  In the case of obvious errors, the Division of
Procurement may permit the withdrawal of a bid.  The decision as to whether a bid may be withdrawn shall be
that of the Division of Procurement.

C. Acceptance of this proposal shall be enactment of an Ordinance by the Urban County Council.

D. The bidder agrees that the Urban County Government reserves the right to reject any and all bids for either fiscal
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or technical reasons, and to award each part of the bid separately, all parts to one vendor or all parts to multiple 
vendors. 

E. Minor exceptions may not eliminate the bidder.  The decision as to whether any exception is minor shall be entirely
that of the head of the requisitioning Department or Division and the Director of the Division of Procurement.  The
Urban County Government may waive technicalities and informalities where such waiver would best serve the
interests of the Urban County Government.

F. Manufacturer's catalogue numbers, trade names, etc., where shown herein are for descriptive purposes and are
to guide the bidder in interpreting the standard of quality, design, and performance desired, and shall not be
construed to exclude proposals based on furnishing other types of materials and/or services. However, any
substitution or departure proposed by the bidder must be clearly noted and described; otherwise, it will be assumed
that the bidder intends to supply items specifically mentioned in this Invitation for Bids.

G. The Urban County Government may require demonstrations of the materials proposed herein prior to acceptance
of this proposal.

H. Bids must be submitted on this form and must be signed by the bidder or his authorized representative.  Unsigned
bids will not be considered.

I. Bids must be submitted prior to the date and time indicated for opening.  Bids submitted after this time will not be
considered.

J. All bids mailed must be submitted in the Ion Wave online portal at https://lexingtonky.ionwave.net/

K. Bidder is requested to show both unit prices and lot prices.  In the event of error, the unit price shall prevail.

L. A certified check or Bid Bond in the amount of percent of the bid price must be attached hereto.  This check
must be made payable to the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government, and will be returned when the material
and/or services specified herein have been delivered in accordance with specifications.  In the event of failure to
perform within the time period set forth in this bid, it is agreed the certified check may be cashed and the funds
retained by the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government as liquidated damages.  Checks of unsuccessful
bidders will be returned when the bid has been awarded.

M. The delivery dates specified by bidder may be a factor in the determination of the successful bidder.

N. Tabulations of bids received may be mailed to bidders.  Bidders requesting tabulations must enclose a stamped,
self-addressed envelope with the bid.

O. The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government is exempt from Kentucky Sales Tax and Federal Excise Tax on
materials purchased from this bid invitation. Materials purchased by the bidder for construction projects are not
tax exempt and are the sole responsibility of the bidder.

P. All material furnished hereunder must be in full compliance with OSHA regulations.

Q. If more than one bid is offered by one party, or by any person or persons representing a party, all such bids shall
be rejected.

R. Signature on the face of this bid by the Bidder or his authorized representative shall be construed as acceptance
of and compliance with all terms and conditions contained herein.

S. The Entity (regardless of whether construction contractor, non-construction contractor or supplier) agrees to
provide equal opportunity in employment for all qualified persons, to prohibit discrimination in employment because
of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, sexual orientation or gender identity), national origin, disability,
age, genetic information, political affiliation, or veteran status, and to promote equal employment through a
positive, continuing program from itself and each of its sub-contracting agents. This program of equal employment
opportunity shall apply to every aspect of its employment policies and practices.

T. The Kentucky Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1978 (KRS 45.560-45.640) requires that any county, city,
town, school district, water district, hospital district, or other political subdivision of the state shall include in directly
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or indirectly publicly funded contracts for supplies, materials, services, or equipment hereinafter entered into the 
following provisions:

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

The Act further provides:

KRS 45.610.  Hiring minorities - Information required

KRS 45.620.  Action against contractor - Hiring of minority contractor or subcontractor

KRS 45.630 Termination of existing employee not required, when

KRS 45.640 Minimum skills

It is recommended that all of the provisions above quoted to be included as special conditions in each contract.  
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In the case of a contract exceeding $250,000, the contractor is required to furnish evidence that his work-force 
in Kentucky is representative of the available work-force in the area from which he draws employees, or to 
supply an Affirmative Action plan which will achieve such representation during the life of the contract.

U. Any party, firm or individual submitting a proposal pursuant to this invitation must be in compliance with the
requirements of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government regarding taxes and fees before they can be
considered for award of this invitation and must maintain a "current" status with regard to those taxes and fees
throughout the term of the contract.  The contractor must be in compliance with Chapter 13 from the Code of
Ordinances of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government.  The contractor must be in compliance with
Ordinance 35-2000 pursuant to contractor registration with the Division of Building Inspection.  If applicable,
said business must have a Fayette County business license.

Pursuant to KRS 45A.343 and KRS 45A.345, the contractor shall

A contractor's failure to reveal the above or to comply with such provisions for the duration of the contract shall be 
grounds for cancellation of the contract and disqualification of the contractor from eligibility for future contracts for 
a period of two (2) years.    

V. Vendors who respond to this invitation have the right to file a notice of contention associated with the bid
process or to file a notice of appeal of the recommendation made by the Director of Procurement resulting
from this invitation.

Notice of contention with the bid process must be filed within 3 business days of the bid/proposal opening
by (1) sending a written notice, including sufficient documentation to support contention, to the Director of
the Division of Procurement or (2) submitting a written request for a meeting with the Director of
Procurement to explain his/her contention with the bid process. After consulting with the Commissioner of
Finance the Chief Administrative Officer and reviewing the documentation and/or hearing the vendor, the
Director of Procurement shall promptly respond in writing findings as to the compliance with bid processes.
If, based on this review, a bid process irregularity is deemed to have occurred the Director of Procurement
will consult with the Commissioner of Finance, the Chief Administrative Officer and the Department of Law
as to the appropriate remedy.
Notice of appeal of a bid recommendation must be filed within 3 business days of the bid recommendation
by (1) sending a written notice, including sufficient documentation to support appeal, to the Director, Division
of Procurement or (2) submitting a written request for a meeting with the Director of Procurement to explain
his appeal.  After reviewing the documentation and/or hearing the vendor and consulting with the
Commissioner of Finance and the Chief Administrative Officer, the Director of Procurement shall in writing,
affirm or withdraw the recommendation.
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A. The terms of this agreement shall be for year(s) from the date of acceptance of this contract by the Lexington-
Fayette Urban County Government. This agreement may be automatically extended for an additional year(s)
renewal. This contract may be canceled by either party thirty (30) days after delivery by canceling party of written
notice of intent to cancel to the other contracting party.

B. Price Changes

(XXX)1. Prices quoted in response to the Invitation shall be firm prices for the first 365 days of the Procurement 
Contract.  After 365 days, prices may be subject to revision and such changes shall be based on general 
industry changes.  Revision may be either increases or decreases and may be requested by either party. 
There will be no more than one (1) price adjustment per year.  Requests for price changes shall be received 
in writing at least twenty (20) days prior to the effective date and are subject to written acceptance before 
becoming effective.  Proof of the validity of a request for revision shall be responsibility of the requesting 
party.  The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government shall receive the benefit of any decline that the 
seller shall offer his other accounts.

() 2. No provision for price change is made herein.  Prices are to be firm for the term of this contract.

() 3. See bid specifications.

C. If any contract item is not available from the vendor, the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government, at its
option, may permit the item to be back-ordered or may procure the item on the open market.

D. All invoices must bear reference to the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government Purchasing document
numbers which are being billed.

E. This contract may be canceled by the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government if it is determined that the
Bidder has failed to perform under the terms of this agreement, such cancellation to be effective upon receipt of
written notice of cancellation by the Bidder.

F. No substitutions for articles specified herein may be made without prior approval of the Division of Procurement.
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Standard Title VI Assurance 

The Lexington Fayette-Urban County Government, (hereinafter referred to as the “Recipient”) hereby agrees that as a condition 
to receiving any Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Transportation, it will comply with Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, 78Stat.252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-4 (hereinafter referred to as the “Act”), and all requirements imposed by or 
pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, (49 
CFR, Part 21) Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Program of the Department of Transportation – Effectuation of Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as the “Regulations”) and other pertinent directives, no person in the United 
States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age (over 40), religion, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
veteran status, or disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity for which the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance from the U.S. 
Department of Transportation, including the Federal Highway Administration, and hereby gives assurance that will promptly 
take any necessary measures to effectuate this agreement. This assurance is required by subsection 21.7(a) (1) of the 
Regulations.  

The Law

· Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (amended 1972) states that it is unlawful for an employer to discriminate in
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, age (40-70 years) or national origin.

· Executive Order No. 11246 on Nondiscrimination under Federal contract prohibits employment discrimination by contractor
and sub-contractor doing business with the Federal Government or recipients of Federal funds.  This order was later
amended by Executive Order No. 11375 to prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex.

· Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 states:

· Section 2012 of the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Act of 1973 requires Affirmative Action on behalf of disabled
veterans and veterans of the Vietnam Era by contractors having Federal contracts.

· Section 206(A) of Executive Order 12086, Consolidation of Contract Compliance Functions for Equal Employment
Opportunity, states:  T

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government practices Equal Opportunity in recruiting, hiring and promoting.  It is the 
Government's intent to affirmatively provide employment opportunities for those individuals who have previously not been 
allowed to enter into the mainstream of society.  Because of its importance to the local Government, this policy carries the full 
endorsement of the Mayor, Commissioners, Directors and all supervisory personnel.  In following this commitment to Equal 
Employment Opportunity and because the Government is the benefactor of the Federal funds, it is both against the Urban 
County Government policy and illegal for the Government to let contracts to companies which knowingly or unknowingly practice
discrimination in their employment practices.  Violation of the above mentioned ordinances may cause a contract to be canceled 
and the contractors may be declared ineligible for future consideration.

Please sign this statement in the appropriate space acknowledging that you have read and understand the provisions contained 
herein.  Return this document as part of your application packet.

Bidders

_____________________________________
Signature

___ ___________________________
Name of Business 
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By signing the below, bidder acknowledges that it understands and agrees with the following provisions related to its bid 
response and the provision of any goods or services to LFUCG upon selection by LFUCG pursuant to the bid request:

1. Bidder shall comply with all Federal, State & Local regulations concerning this type of service or good. All applicable
state laws, ordinances and resolutions (including but not limited to Section 2-33 (Discrimination due to sexual
orientation or gender identity) and Chapter 13 (Licenses and Regulations) of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government Code of Ordinances, and Resolution No. 484-17 (Minority, Women, and Veteran-Owned Businesses))
and the regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over the project shall apply to the contract, and shall be
deemed to be incorporated herein by reference.

2. Failure to submit ALL forms and information required by LFUCG may be grounds for disqualification.

3. Addenda: All addenda and IonWave Q&A, if any, must be considered by the bidder in making its response, and
such addenda shall be made a part of the requirements of the bid contract. Before submitting a bid response, it is
incumbent upon bidder to be informed as to whether any addenda have been issued, and the failure of the bidder
to cover any such addenda may result in disqualification of that response.

4. Bid Reservations: LFUCG reserves the right to reject any or all bid responses, to award in whole or part, and to
waive minor immaterial defects in proposals. LFUCG may consider any alternative proposal that meets its basic
needs.

5. Liability: LFUCG is not responsible for any cost incurred by bidder in the preparation of its response.

6. Changes/Alterations: Bidder may change or withdraw a proposal at any time prior to the opening; however, no oral
modifications will be allowed. Only letters, or other formal written requests for modifications or corrections of a
previously submitted proposal which is addressed in the same manner as the bid response, and received by LFUCG
prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of bids, will be accepted. The bid response when opened, will then
be corrected in accordance with such written request(s), provided that the written request is contained in a sealed
envelope which is plainly marked “modifications of bid response”.

7. Clarification of Submittal: LFUCG reserves the right to obtain clarification of any point in a bid or to obtain additional
information from any bidder.

8. Bribery Clause: By his/her signature on its response, bidder certifies that no employee of his/hers, any affiliate or
subcontractor, has bribed or attempted to bribe an officer or employee of the LFUCG.

9. Additional Information: While not necessary, the bidder may include any product brochures, software
documentation, sample reports, or other documentation that may assist LFUCG in better understanding and
evaluating the bid response.  Additional documentation shall not serve as a substitute for other documentation
which is required by the LFUCG to be submitted with the bid response.

10. Ambiguity, Conflict or other Errors: If a bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other
error in the bid request of LFUCG, it shall immediately notify LFUCG of such error in writing and request modification
or clarification of the document if allowable by the LFUCG.

11. Agreement to Bid Terms: In submitting its bid response, the bidder agrees that it has carefully examined the
specifications and all provisions relating to LFUCG’s bid request, including but not limited to the bid contract. By
submission of its bid response, bidder states that it understands the meaning, intent and requirements of LFUCG’s
bid request and agrees to the same. The successful bidder shall warrant that it is familiar with and understands all
provisions herein and shall warrant that it can comply with them. No additional compensation to bidder shall be
authorized for services, expenses, or goods reasonably covered under these provisions that the bidder omits from
its bid response.

12. Cancellation: LFUCG may unilaterally terminate the bid contract with the selected bidder(s) at any time, with or
without cause, by providing at least thirty (30) days advance written notice unless a different advance written notice
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period is negotiated prior to contract approval. Payment for services or goods received prior to termination shall be 
made by the LFUCG provided these goods or services were provided in a manner acceptable to the LFUCG. Payment 
for those goods and services shall not be unreasonably withheld.

13. Assignment of Contract: The selected bidder(s) shall not assign or subcontract any portion of the bid contract with
LFUCG without the express written consent of LFUCG. Any purported assignment or subcontract in violation hereof
shall be void. It is expressly acknowledged that LFUCG shall never be required or obligated to consent to any request
for assignment or subcontract; and further that such refusal to consent can be for any or no reason, fully within the
sole discretion of LFUCG.

14. No Waiver: No failure or delay by LFUCG in exercising any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder, nor any
single or partial exercise thereof, nor the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege shall operate as a
waiver hereof or thereof. No failure or delay by LFUCG in exercising any right, remedy, power or privilege under or
in respect of this bid proposal or bid contract shall affect the rights, remedies, powers or privileges of LFUCG
hereunder or shall operate as a waiver thereof.

15. Authority to do Business: Each bidder must be authorized to do business under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Kentucky and must be in good standing and have full legal capacity to provide the goods or services specified in
the bid proposal. Each bidder must have all necessary right and lawful authority to submit the bid response and
enter into the bid contract for the full term hereof including any necessary corporate or other action authorizing the
bidder to submit the bid response and enter into this bid contract. If requested, the bidder will provide LFUCG with
a copy of a corporate resolution authorizing this action and/or a letter from an attorney confirming that the proposer
is authorized to do business in the Commonwealth of Kentucky.  All bid responses must be signed by a duly
authorized officer, agent or employee of the bidder.

16. Governing Law: This bid request and bid contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws
of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. In the event of any proceedings regarding this matter, the bidder agrees that
the venue shall be the Fayette County Circuit Court or the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky,
Lexington Division and that the bidder expressly consents to personal jurisdiction and venue in such Court for the
limited and sole purpose of proceedings relating to these matters or any rights or obligations arising thereunder.

17. Ability to Meet Obligations: Bidder affirmatively states that there are no actions, suits or proceedings of any kind
pending against bidder or, to the knowledge of the bidder, threatened against the bidder before or by any court,
governmental body or agency or other tribunal or authority which would, if adversely determined, have a materially
adverse effect on the authority or ability of bidder to perform its obligations under this bid response or bid contract,
or which question the legality, validity or enforceability hereof or thereof.

18. Price Discrepancy:  When applicable, in case of price discrepancy, unit bid price written in words will prevail followed
by unit price written in numbers then total amount bid per line item.

19. Bidder understands and agrees that its employees, agents, or subcontractors are not employees of LFUCG for any
purpose whatsoever.  Bidder is an independent contractor at all times related to the bid response or bid contract.

20. Contractor [or Vendor or Vendor’s Employees] will not appropriate or make use of the Lexington-Fayette Urban
County Government (LFUCG) name or any of its  trade or service marks or property (including but not limited to
any logo or seal), in any promotion, endorsement,  advertisement, testimonial or similar use without the prior
written consent of the government. If such consent is granted LFUCG reserves the unilateral right, in its sole
discretion, to immediately terminate and revoke such use for any reason whatsoever.  Contractor agrees that it
shall cease and desist from any unauthorized use immediately upon being notified by LFUCG.

21. If any term or provision of this bid contract shall be found to be illegal or unenforceable, the remainder of the
contract shall remain in full force and such term or provision shall be deemed stricken.

_________________________ _____________________
Signature Date
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(Name and Title) Revised 2015-Dec-15
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The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government has a Certified Minority and Women Business Enterprise 
seventeen percent (17%) minimum goal including minimum subgoals of five percent (5%) for Minority Business 
Enterprises (MBE) and a subgoal of twelve percent (12%) for Women Business Enterprises (WBE); a three (3%) 
minimum goal for Certified Veteran-Owned Small Businesses and/or Certified Service- Disabled Veteran Owned 
Businesses; and a goal of utilizing Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE), where applicable, for government 
contracts.

For assistance in locating certified DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or VOSBs, contact Sherita Miller at 859/258-3320 
or by writing the address listed below:

Sherita Miller, MPA, CPSD
Minority Business Enterprise Liaison

Division of Procurement
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government

200 East Main Street  
Lexington, Kentucky 40507

smiller@lexingtonky.gov  
859-258-3323
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MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM

Sherita Miller, MPA, CPSD
Minority Business Enterprise Liaison
Division of Procurement
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
200 East Main Street
Lexington, KY 40507
smiller@lexingtonky.gov
859-258-3323

OUR MISSION:  The mission of the Minority Business Enterprise Program (MBEP) is to facilitate the full 
participation of minority and women owned businesses in the procurement process and to promote economic 
inclusion as a business imperative essential to the long- term economic viability of Lexington-Fayette Urban 
County Government.

To that end the urban county council adopted and implemented Resolution 272-2024 – a Certified Minority and 
Women Business Enterprise seventeen percent (17%) minimum goal including minimum subgoals of five percent 
(5%) for Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) and a subgoal of twelve percent (12%) for Women Business 
Enterprises (WBE); a three (3%) minimum goal for Certified Veteran-Owned Small Businesses and/or Certified 
Service- Disabled Veteran Owned Businesses; and a goal of utilizing Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE), 
where applicable, for government contracts.

The resolution states the following definitions shall be used for the purposes of reaching these goals:

Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)

Certified Minority Business Enterprise (MBE)

Certified Women Business Enterprise (WBE)

Certified Veteran-Owned Small Business (VOSB)

Certified Service -Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business (SDVOSB) 

The term “Certified” shall mean the business is appropriately certified, licensed, verified, or validated by an 
organization or entity recognized by the Division of Procurement as having the appropriate credentials to make a 
determination as to the status of the business. 
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The following certifications are recognized and accepted by the MBEP:

Kentucky Transportation Cabinet (KYTC), Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
Kentucky Minority and Women Business Enterprise (MWBE)
Women’s Business Enterprise National Council (WBENC)
National Women Business Owners Corporation (NWBOC)
National Minority Supplier Development Council (NMSDC)
Tri-State Minority Supplier Development Council (TSMSDC)
U.S. Small Business Administration Veteran Small Business Certification (VetCert)
Kentucky Service- Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business (SDVOSB)

To comply with Resolution 272-2024, prime contractors, minority and women business enterprises, veteran 
owned small businesses, and service-disabled veteran owned small businesses must complete monthly contract 
compliance audits in the Diverse Business Management Compliance system, 
https://lexingtonky.diversitycompliance.com/

A list of organizations that certify and/or maintain lists of certified businesses (i.e. DBE, MBE, WBE, VOSB 
and/or SDVOSB) is available upon request by emailing, Sherita Miller, smiller@lexingtonky.gov. 
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LFUCG MWDBE PARTICIPATION FORM 
Bid/RFP/Quote Reference
#___ ________________________

The MWDBE and/or veteran subcontractors listed have agreed to participate on this Bid/RFP/Quote.  If any 
substitution is made or the total value of the work is changed prior to or after the job is in progress, it is 
understood that those substitutions must be submitted to the Division of Procurement for approval immediately
Failure to submit a completed form may cause rejection of the bid.

MWBE Company, Name, 
Address, Phone, Email

DBE/MBE
WBE/VOSB/SDVOSB

Work to be Performed Total Dollar 
Value of the 

Work

% Value of 
Total Contract

1.

2.

3.

4.

The undersigned company representative submits the above list of MDWBE and veteran firms to be used in 
accomplishing the work contained in this Bid/RFP/Quote.  Any misrepresentation may result in the termination of the 
contract and/or be subject to applicable Federal and State laws concerning false statements and false claims.

______________________________
Company Representative

______________________________

_____ _____________
Company

_________________________________
Date Title
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LFUCG MWDBE SUBSTITUTION FORM

Bid/RFP/Quote Reference #_________ ___________

The substituted MWDBE and/or veteran subcontractors listed below have agreed to participate on this 
Bid/RFP/Quote. These substitutions were made prior to or after the job was in progress. These substitutions were 
made for reasons stated below and are now being submitted to the Division of Procurement for approval. By the 
authorized signature of a representative of our company, we understand that this information will be entered into 
our file for this project.  Note: Form required if a subcontractor is being substituted on a contract. 

SUBSTITUTED 
DBE/MBE/WBE/VOSB 

Company Name, 
Address, Phone, Email

DBE/MBE/WBE/VOSB/SDVOSB 
Formally Contracted/ Name, 

Address, Phone, Email

Work to Be 
Performed

Reason for the 
Substitution

Total Dollar 
Value of the 

Work 

% Value of 
Total Contract

1.

2.

3.

4.

The undersigned acknowledges that any misrepresentation may result in termination of the contract and/or be subject to 
applicable Federal and State laws concerning false statements and false claims. 

____________________________________
Company Representative

_______________________________________

____ __________
Company

_______________________________
Date Title
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DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR GOOD FAITH EFFORTS AND OUTREACH PLANS

As affirmed in Resolution Number 272-2024, the Urban County Council has adopted an annual aspirational goal 
of utilizing at least seventeen percent (17%) of public funds spend from certain discretionary agreements with 
certified Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs) and certified Woman Business Enterprises (WBEs); utilizing at 
least three percent (3%) of public funds from certain discretionary agreements with Certified Veteran-Owned 
Small Business and Certified Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Small Businesses (VOSBs); and utilizing 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) where applicable. Bidders should make every effort to achieve these 
goals.  

Therefore, as an element of the responsiveness of the bid, all Bidders are required to submit documentation of 
their good faith and outreach efforts to ensure all businesses, including small and disadvantaged businesses such 
as minority-, woman-, and veteran-owned businesses, have an equal opportunity to compete for and participate 
in the performance of any subcontracts resulting from this procurement. Examples of good faith and outreach 
efforts that satisfy this requirement to encourage the participation of, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or 
SDVOSBs include: 

1. Advertised opportunities to participate in the contract in at least two (2) publications of general
circulation media; trade and professional association publications; small and minority business or trade
publications; and publications or trades targeting minority, women, and disadvantaged businesses not
less than fifteen (15) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids to allow, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs,
VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs to participate.

2. Attended LFUCG Procurement Economic Inclusion Outreach event(s) within the past year to meet
new small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs to partner with on LFUCG
contracts and procurements.

3. Attended pre-bid/pre-proposal meetings that were scheduled by LFUCG to inform small businesses,
DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs of subcontracting opportunities.

4. Sponsored Economic Inclusion event to provide networking opportunities for prime contractors and
small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs.

5. Requested a list of certified small, DBE, MBE, WBE, VOSB and/or SDVOSB subcontractors or
suppliers from LFUCG and showed evidence of contacting the companies on the list(s).

6. Contacted organizations that work with small, DBE, MBE, WBE, and VOSB companies for assistance
in finding certified DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSB and/or SDVOSBs to work on this project.  Those
contacted and their responses must be a part of the bidder’s outreach efforts documentation.

7. Sent written notices, by certified mail, email, or facsimile, to qualified, certified small businesses, DBEs,
MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs soliciting their participation in the contract not less than seven
(7) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids to allow them to participate effectively.

8. Followed up initial solicitations by contacting small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or
SDVOSBs via tailored communications to determine their level of interest.
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9. Provided the interested small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs with adequate
and timely information about the plans, specifications, and requirements of the contract.

10. Selected portions of the work to be performed by small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or
SDVOSBs in order to increase the likelihood of subcontracting participation.  This includes, where
appropriate, breaking out contract work items into economically feasible units to facilitate small, DBE,
MBE, WBE, VOSB and/or SDVOSB participation, even when the prime contractor may otherwise
perform these work items with its own workforce.

11. Negotiated in good faith with interested small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or
SDVOSBs, not rejecting them as unqualified without sound reasons based on a thorough investigation
of their capabilities.  Any rejection must be so noted in writing with a description as to why an agreement
could not be reached.

12. Included documentation of quotations received from interested small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs,
VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs that were not used due to uncompetitive pricing or were rejected as
unacceptable and/or copies of responses from firms indicating that they would not be submitting a bid.

a. Bidder has to submit sound reasons why the quotations were considered unacceptable. The fact
that the bidder has the ability and/or desire to perform the contract work with its own forces will
not be considered a sound reason for rejecting a small business’, DBE’s MBE’s, WBE’s, VOSB’s
and/or SDVOSB’s quote.  Nothing in this provision shall be construed to require the bidder to
accept unreasonable quotes in order to satisfy the participation goals.

13. Made an effort to offer assistance to or refer interested small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs
and/or SDVOSBs to obtain the necessary equipment, supplies, materials, insurance and/or bonding to
satisfy the work requirements of the bid proposal.

14. Made efforts to expand the search for small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs
beyond the usual geographic boundaries.

15. Other – any other evidence that the bidder submits that may demonstrate that the bidder has made
reasonable efforts to include small, DBE, MBE, WBE, VOSB and/or SDVOSB participation.

Bidder must document, with specificity, each of the efforts it made to include small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, 
WBEs, VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs as subcontractors in the procurement, including the date on which each effort 
was made, the medium through which each effort was made, and the outcome of each effort.      

Note: Failure to submit the documentation requested in this section may be cause for rejection of 
bid.  Bidders may include any other documentation deemed relevant to this requirement which is 
subject to review by the MBE Liaison.  Documentation of Good Faith and Outreach Efforts must 
be submitted with the Bid, regardless of the proposed level of small, DBE, MBE, WBE, VOSB 
and/or SDVOSB participation in the procurement.  If the Good Faith and Outreach Effort 
documentation is not submitted with the bid response, the bid may be rejected. 

OUTREACH EFFORTS EVALUATION

Outreach efforts demonstrated by the bidder or respondent will be evaluated on a pass/fail basis.
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ATTACHMENT A – SMALL AND DISADVANTAGED, MINORITY-, 
WOMEN-, AND VETERAN-OWNED BUSINESS OUTREACH PLAN 
Proposer Name: Date: 

Project Name: Project Number: 

Contact Name: Telephone: 

Email: 

The mission of the Minority Business Enterprise Program is to facilitate the full participation of disadvantaged 
businesses, minority-, women-, veteran-, and service-disabled veteran-owned businesses in the procurement process 
and to promote economic inclusion as a business imperative essential to the long -term economic viability of Lexington-
Fayette Urban County Government. 

To that end, small and disadvantaged businesses, including minority-, woman-, veteran-, and service-disabled veteran-
owned businesses, must have an equal opportunity to be utilized in the performance of contracts with public funds spent 
from certain discretionary agreements. By submitting its offer, Bidder/Proposer certifies that it has taken, and if there 
are further opportunities will take, reasonable steps to ensure that small and disadvantaged businesses, including 
minority-, woman-, veteran-, and service-disabled veteran-owned businesses, are provided an equal opportunity to 
compete for and participate in the performance of any subcontracts resulting from this procurement.   

The information submitted in response to this clause will not be considered in any scored evaluation. Failure to submit 
this form may cause the bid or proposal to be rejected. 

Is the Bidder/ Proposer a certified firm?     Yes ☐    N o X

If yes, indicate all certification type(s): 

DBE ☐ MBE ☐ WBE ☐ SBE ☐ VOSB/SDVOSB ☐

and supply a copy of the certificate and/or certification letter if not currently listed on the city’s Minority Business 
Enterprise Program’s (MBEP) certified list. 

1. Include a list of firms that Bidder/ Proposer has had a contractual relationship with within the last two years
that are minority-owned, woman-owned, veteran-owned or small businesses, regardless of their certification
status.

 Sole Engineering

2. Does Bidder/Proposer foresee any subcontracting opportunities for this procurement?

USP Technologies
Sewer Collection System Odor Control 
Chemical Pilot Testing 23-2025

Samuel Kohl

skohl@usptechnologies.com

March 18, 2025

202-768-0851
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Yes ☐        No

If no, please explain why in the field below. Do not complete the rest of this form and submit this first page 
with your bid and/or proposal. 

If yes, please complete the following pages and submit all pages with your bid and/or proposal. 

Describe the steps Bidder/Proposer took to solicit small and disadvantaged businesses, including MBEs, WBEs, 
VOSBs, and SDVOSBs, for subcontracting opportunities for this procurement.  

3. Check the good faith and outreach efforts the Bidder/Proposer used to encourage the participation of small
and disadvantaged businesses including, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and SDVOSBs:

☐ Bidder placed advertisements in search of prospective small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs
and/or SDVOSBs for the solicitation.

☐ Bidder attended LFUCG Procurement Economic Inclusion Outreach event(s) within the past year.

☐ Bidder attended pre-bid and/or pre-proposal meetings for this solicitation.

☐ Bidder sponsored an Economic Inclusion Outreach event.

☐ Bidder requested a list of certified small, DBE, MBE, WBE, VOSB and/or SDVOSB subcontractors or
suppliers from LFUCG.

☐ Bidder contacted organizations that work with small, DBE, MBE, WBE, VOSB and/or SDVOSB
companies.

☐ Bidder sent written notices to certified small, DBE, MBE, WBE, VOSB and SDVOSB businesses.

☐ Bidder followed up to initial solicitations with interested small, DBE, MBE, WBE, VOSB and/or
SDVOSB.

☐ Bidder provided small, DBE, MBE, WBE, VOSB and/or SDVOSB businesses interested in performing
the solicited work with prompt access to the plans, specifications, scope of work, and requirements of
the solicitation.

☐ Bidder made efforts to segment portions of the work to be performed by small businesses, DBEs, MBEs,
WBEs, VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs, including dividing sub-bid/partnership opportunities into
economically feasible units/parcels, to facilitate participation.

See our response in Appendix A 

Moneke Gibbs
Highlight
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☐ Bidder negotiated in good faith with interested small, DBE, MBE, WBE, VOSB and/or SDVOSB
businesses.

☐ Bidder provided adequate rationale for rejecting any small business’, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs or
SDVOSBs for lack of qualifications.

☐ Bidder offered assistance in obtaining bonding, insurance, financial, equipment, or other resources to
small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs, in an effort to assist them in meeting
project requirements.

☐ Bidder made efforts to expand the search for small businesses, DBEs MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or
SDVOSBs beyond the usual geographic boundaries.

☐ Bidder made other reasonable efforts to include small businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or
SDVOSBs participation.

4. Bidder/Proposer must include documentation, including the date each effort was made, the medium through
which each effort was made, and the outcome of each effort with this form, regardless of the level of small, DBE,
MBE, WBE, VOSB and/or SDVOSB participation. Examples of required documentation include copies of email 
communications, copies of newspaper advertisements, or copies of quotations received from interested small
businesses, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs or SDVOSBs.

Appendix B-Good Faith Efforts

For detailed information regarding outreach efforts that satisfy the MBE Program’s requirements, please see 
“Documentation Required for Good Faith Efforts and Outreach Plans” page.  

Note: The Bidder/Proposer must be willing to report the identity of each subcontractor and the value of each 
subcontract to MBEP if awarded a contract from this procurement. 

Failure to submit the documentation requested may be cause for rejection of the bid. Bidders may include any 
other documentation deemed relevant to this requirement, which is subject to review by the MBE Liaison. 
Documentation of Good Faith and Outreach Efforts must be submitted with the bid, regardless of the proposed 
level of SBEs, DBEs, MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs and/or SDVOSBs participation in the procurement. If the Good 
Faith and Outreach Effort Form and associated documentation is not submitted with the bid response, the bid 
may be rejected. 

Moneke Gibbs
Highlight
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The undersigned acknowledges that all information is accurate.  Any misrepresentations may result in termination of 
the contract and/or be subject to applicable Federal and State laws concerning false statements and claims.

____________________________________
Company Representative
____________________________________

_____ __________
Company
______________________________
Date Title

4870-1925-6809, v. 1















MAYOR LINDA GORTON TODD SLATIN  

DIRECTOR

PROCUREMENT

200 East Main St., Lexington, KY 40507 / 859.258.3320 Phone / 859.258.3322 Fax / lexingtonky.gov

ADDENDUM #1

Bid Number:  #23-2025 Date:  February 18, 2025

Subject: Sewer Collection System Odor Control Chemical Pilot Testing
Address inquiries to: 
Brian Marcum
(859) 258-3320

TO ALL PROSPECTIVE SUBMITTERS:

Please be advised of the following clarifications to the above referenced Bid:

1. The electronic bid opening date has been extended to March 11, 2025, at 2:00 PM EST in 
Ionwave.

2. The non-mandatory prebid meeting is in person and has been changed to February 26, 
2025 at 10:00 AM EST 301 Jimmie Campbell Drive Lexington, Kentucky, due to 
impending weather.

                                                                                                                                                                                                              
Todd Slatin, Director

                      Division of Procurement

All other terms and conditions of the Bid and specifications are unchanged.
This letter should be signed, attached to and become a part of your Bid.

COMPANY NAME: USP Technologies 
__________________________________________________________

ADDRESS: _5640 Cox Road Glen Allen, VA 23060 
______________________________________________________________

SIGNATURE OF BIDDER: ___________________________________________________



MAYOR LINDA GORTON TODD SLATIN  

DIRECTOR

PROCUREMENT

200 East Main St., Lexington, KY 40507 / 859.258.3320 Phone / 859.258.3322 Fax / lexingtonky.gov

ADDENDUM #2

Bid Number:  #23-2025 Date:  February 28, 2025

Subject: Sewer Collection System Odor Control Chemical Pilot Testing
Address inquiries to: 
Brian Marcum
(859) 258-3320

TO ALL PROSPECTIVE SUBMITTERS:

Please be advised of the following clarifications to the above referenced Bid:

1. The electronic bid opening date has been extended to March 18, 2025, at 2:00 PM EST in
Ionwave.

Attached Prebid Powerpoint
Attached Prebid Sign in Sheet

Todd Slatin, Director  
Division of Procurement

All other terms and conditions of the Bid and specifications are unchanged.
This letter should be signed, attached to and become a part of your Bid.

COMPANY NAME:__________________________________________________________

ADDRESS: _______________________________________________________________

SIGNATURE OF BIDDER: ___________________________________________________



Lexington-Fayette Urban County 
Government

Invitation to Bid #23-2025 
Sewer Collection System Odor Control Chemical Pilot Testing

Pre-Bid Meeting   02/26/2025

1



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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Introductions

• Rick Bowman, Odor Control Manager, City of  Lexington

• Sharon Worley, Senior Engineer, Webster Environmental Associates

• Brian Marcum, Procurement Officer Sr., Division of  Procurement

• Sherita Miller, Minority Business Enterprise Liaison, Division of
Procurement



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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General Explanation: What and Why
• Lexington has long sewage force mains that promote the formation of  odor 

causing compounds.

• Lexington currently feeds a nitrate-based chemical at nine pump stations –
results are a “mixed bag”.

• Lexington wants to evaluate a variety of  products to determine the most cost-
effective approach in the reduction of  odor/corrosion causing compounds.

• Lexington wants to evaluate feeding chemicals at different locations, including 
on long force mains using multiple feed locations.  



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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Expected Outcome From This Advertisement
• All viable proposals will be accepted as a pre-qualified chemical (meaning that 

chemicals can be tested without further procurement paperwork).

• Viable chemical applications will be considered for pilot testing, with testing to 
begin in 2025 and continue indefinitely.

• Peak odor season is July 1 to November 1  - pilot testing likely limited to that 
timeframe.

• Given the limited testing timeframe and potential number of  responders, there is 
no guarantee that your product will be tested in 2025 or in the future.



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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What Makes a Proposal “Viable”?
• Documented experience in the municipal or industrial wastewater odor 

control sector.

• References in the municipal or industrial wastewater odor control 
sector that can be verified by Lexington.

• Verification that chemical applications proposed will not upset the 
treatment biological processes.

• NOTE: A separate proposal is required for each product.



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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Proposed Plan for Pilot Testing
2025 Goal - Pilot test at least four different proposer’s applications.  Tentative plan:

South Elkhorn force main
• Test One -    7/1/25 to 7/30/25 
• Test Two -    8/15/25 to 9/15/25
• Test Three - 10/1/25 to 10/30/25

Lower Cane Run force main
• Test One -    7/1/25 to 7/30/25 
• Test Two -    8/15/25 to 9/15/25
• Test Three - 10/1/25 to 10/30/25

FM Length

feet inches gpd hours

South Elkhorn 2500 Bowman Mill Rd DI 33,730 36 24 4,000,000 11

Lower Cane Run 1760 Mc Grathiana Pkwy DI 24,260 30 9 1,100,000 19

Ave 
Detention 

TimePS Name PS Address
FM 

Material

FM 
Diameter No. of ARVs

PS Ave 
Daily Flow



Scope of Work for Pilot Tests
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LFUCG expects to provide:
- Flat gravel area (approximately 13’ x 18’)
- At Pump Stations:

- Power at SE and LCR PSs: two 115V circuits (one 15-20 AMP, one 20-25 AMP)
- Power at other PSs: 115 VAC, 60Hz, 1 phase
- Access to wet wells

- At Midpoint on SE FM:
- Two SS 1” diameter taps into the force main each with a shutoff  valve and a check valve

Vendor to provide:
- Chemical delivery to feed site
- Equipment/materials for safe chemical storage, handling, feeding, & control
- Labor to include mob/demob, maintenance, sampling and monitoring
- Reports



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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Division of Procurement Comments

SCHEDULE
Bid Close Date: 3/11/2025 2:00 PM (ET)                 
Questions Cut Off: 3/3/2025 4:00 PM (ET)                   
ALL questions must be submitted via Ionwave

• Award Notices Issued Upon Evaluation Completion & Council Approval

• Pilot Testing Begins – see prior slide

• All submittals and all required information must be submitted 
electronically in Ionwave, please include all DBE forms completed, and 
Good Faith Efforts documented.



ODOR CONTROL PILOT PROJECT 2025
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QUESTIONS





MAYOR LINDA GORTON TODD SLATIN  

DIRECTOR

CENTRAL PURCHASING

200 East Main St., Lexington, KY 40507 / 859.258.3320 Phone / 859.258.3322 Fax / lexingtonky.gov

ADDENDUM  No. 3

Bid Number:  #23-2025 Date:  March 10, 2025

Subject: Sewer Collection System Odor Control Chemical
Pilot Testing Address inquiries to: 

Q&A Module on Ion Wave

Brian Marcum
brianm@lexingtonky.gov
(859) 258-3325

TO ALL PROSPECTIVE SUBMITTERS:

Please be advised of the following modifications to the above referenced Bid:

Please see the attached questions and answers.

Todd Slatin, Director
  Division of Central Purchasing

All other terms and conditions of the Bid and specifications are unchanged.
This letter should be signed, attached to and become a part of your Bid.

COMPANY NAME: __________________________________________________________

ADDRESS: _______________________________________________________________

SIGNATURE OF BIDDER: ___________________________________________________



1 

Division of Water Quality 
125 Lisle Industrial Ave., Suite 180 

Lexington, KY 40511 

Bid #23-2025 ODOR CONTROL CHEMICALS PILOT STUDY 

# SUPPLIER SUBMITTED QUESTIONS LFUCG RESPONSE 

1 

Is the odor control required AT the two sites mentioned OR
downstream from them?

If needed at the two sites, are there stations just ahead that
flow into each?

The chemical would be fed at the PS and may also be fed at the
midpoint.

A schematic of the two FMs is provided in Appendix A.

2 Are Lower Cane Run and South Elkhorn in series with each
other?

No, they are not in series with each other. See Appendix A.

3 

Will the City use the chemical unit trial price stated here for
the trial to be the permanent application price used to award
for trial? Less than bulk deliveries affect delivery costs, the
trial price is typically higher than a permanent application
bulk delivered price.

Chemical unit trial price would apply only to the specified pilot testing.
If any odor control chemicals are to be used by LFUCG for long term
solutions, those chemicals would be procured under a separate
contract.

4 How soon must the trials start, after award? Proposed schedule for pilot testing was included in Addendum 1.

5 What is the procedure to get subcontractor approval?

6 

Is there regular FOG control done (mechanical or chemical),
due to blankets forming at the stations or at the plant?

If so, is it much more at these stations, and downstream of
them, than the rest of the collection system?

Wet Wells are scheduled to be cleaned at LCR-monthly, SELK-
Quarterly, Sandersville-Bi-yearly.

Lexington’s FOG control in pump station wet wells is handled
mechanically, no chemical methods are used.

7 How much of the total flow to the WWTP does the flow at
South Elkhorn represent?

The SE PS contributes roughly 20% of the flow to the West Hickman
WWTP.

8 Is there alkalinity addition or caustic trimming at the effluent
of the plant?

No, there is not.
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# SUPPLIER SUBMITTED QUESTIONS LFUCG RESPONSE 

9  Are you, WWTP dosing chemicals for supplemental 
carbon? 

 No 

10  What was the monthly Nitra-NOx feed rate at South Elkhorn 
PS and Lower Cane PS?  See Appendix B 

11

 May we have access to H2S data (liquid and vapor) at 
current control points?  

 If not, what are the annual ranges and averages of vapor 
H2S and aqueous sulfide loadings at the control points 

 See Appendix B 

12  What is your current price for Nitra Nox?  This information is not needed for vendors to respond to this RFP. 

13  What was the 2024 annual treatment spend on both lines in 
question? 

 This information is not needed for vendors to respond to this RFP. 

14  Bid Conditions II, L requires a bid bond. What is the percent 
of the bid price required? Document states "XX percent". 

 A bid bond is not required for this Bid.   

15 
 Lower Cane Run: Can you provide a map of the LCR 

forcemain as well as the ARV locations and discharge 
point? 

 A schematic of the two FMs is provided in Appendix A. 

16 

 LCR: Is there odor control coming into this Class A station?  

 What chemical(s) are being used?  

 What is the average daily feed rate? 

 Odor control chemical is fed at the LCR PS and also at the upstream 
Horse Park PS. 

 Nitrates.  

 See Appendix B 

17 

 LCR: Are there historical sulfide readings from the influent 
wetwell that can be provided? 

 Residual Nitrate?  

 pH? 

 No, LFUCG does not have historical sulfide, Residual Nitrate, and/or 
pH readings from the influent wetwell for LCR 

18 

 LCR: Are there historical sulfide readings from the 
discharge point or ARV’s that can be provided?  

 Residual Nitrate?  

 pH?  

 Hydrogen sulfide graphs? 

 See Appendix B   
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# SUPPLIER SUBMITTED QUESTIONS LFUCG RESPONSE 

19 
 Could you provide a system schematic for both Forcemains 

to be treated showing any potential sidestream flow 
contributors? 

 Please refer to Appendix A included with this Addendum. 

20 

 LCR: Are there any odor complaints coming from this 
Forcemain?  

 If Yes, where are the main pain points?  

 Are there other contributing forcemains to consider for odor 
complaints nearby? 

 Yes.   

 LCR_ARV 8 has been a source of odor complaints. 

 A schematic of the two FMs (including contributing FMs) is provided in 
Appendix A . 

21  What type of pump operation do SE, LCR, and Sandersville 
employ? (ON/OFF or more constant flow on VFDs) 

SELK: Has VFD’s. During the day it consistently runs and alternates 
pumps every 4 hours. During Low flows (overnight) Pumps cycle ON & 
off, see Appendix C.  

 LCR: Has 2 large constant speed pumps for wet weather events and 2 
smaller pumps that run on VFD’s. Normal operation VFD’s running 
always and switching pumps every 8 hours, see Appendix D. 

 Sandersville: Has 2 pumps running off across the line starters. Runs 
ON/OFF depending on flow, see Appendix E. 

22  Is there detailed flow information available to view hourly 
variability in flows from the prospective dosing locations? 

 Addressed in response to item #21. 

23  Sandersville PS: What is the Average daily flow?  Avg 60 mins of run time, Avg 615 gpm, Avg gpd 36,900.  

24 
 Could you provide flow data for Sandersville Pump Station? 

 Could you provide pipe distance/diameter information? 

 See response to item #23. 

 6” FM from Sandersville PS to LCR FM Tie in, 32FT 

25  Sandersville: What are the forcemain dimensions? (Length, 
diameter) 

 See response to item #24. 

26  Will there be an analog sewage flow signal available to 
connect to feed systems installed at pump stations? 

 LFUCG does not believe it is necessary to tie in to “flow signal” to do 
chemical pilot as we are dripping chemical at all three sites in well 
(Sandersville) or first incoming manhole into station (LCR, SELK) . 
There is a 4-20ma signal Loop at SELK and LCR for Level and to turn 
pumps on and off.  SELK and LCR have OUT going Strap on flow 
meters but as of now, service is spotty at best. Sandersville has 
nothing. 

27  Will there be specified monitoring locations (control points) 
Discharge locations, i.e., manhole, wet well? 

 Yes, the discharge MH and intermediate ARVs. 
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# SUPPLIER SUBMITTED QUESTIONS LFUCG RESPONSE 

28  Sandersville: What are the pump run times (starts and draw 
down times)? 

 See response to item #23 and see Appendix E and Appendix F 

29 

 What are the treatment goals for performance on these 
lines?  

 Will there be both liquid phase sulfide treatment goals in 
addition to vapor phase treatment goals? 

 Specific goals have not yet been established but looking for most 
effective means of controlling odors and corrosion. 

 Yes. 

30  Sandersville: Are there odor complaints near where this ties 
into the LCR forcemain? 

 None documented. 

31 

 Sandersville: Are there historical sulfide readings from the 
influent wetwell that can be provided? 

 Residual Nitrate? 

 pH? 

 No, LFUCG does not have historical sulfide, Residual Nitrate, and/or 
pH readings from the influent wetwell for the Sandersville Pump 
Station 

32 

 Will products that are considered “hazardous materials” be 
considered for treatment in these pilots?  

 Will temporary safety water supply setups be acceptable at 
locations where there is not currently access to water? 

 Yes, but as stated in the RFP: “Services shall be provided in a safe, 
secure, effective, and efficient manner and in accordance with all 
applicable laws, rules, and regulations.” 

 Yes as long as the water supply meets the safety requirements for the 
product. 

33 
 Is LFUCG mostly concerned with Odor Complaints or is 

there also a concern for corrosion control to protect 
infrastructure? 

 RFP states: “The work consists of providing all necessary materials, 
chemicals, personnel, equipment, and services for pilot testing of odor 
and corrosion control chemicals in LFUCG’s wastewater collection 
system.” 

34 
 Will LFUCG be available to make the physical chemical 

discharge connection on the force main injection 
connection(s)? 

 LFUCG will provide the “tap,” each selected Vendor/Bidder will be 
required to make the physical chemical discharge connection of their 
equipment to the provided tap 

35 
 Will LFUCG be sharing RFP results with other vendors? 

 Will LFUCG be sharing Pilot Data Reports with other 
vendors? 

 Results to be posted on ionwave. 

 No. 

36 

 How will efficacy of different treatments be evaluated over 
the time frame of the testing? Meaning different pilot periods 
may experience drastically different weather conditions and 
wastewater temperatures, resulting in differing demand in 
the system. 

 Differing conditions will be taken into account in the evaluation. 
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APPENDIX A 
LOWER CANE RUN and SOUTH ELKHORN FORCE MAIN 

SCHEMATICS
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APPENDIX B  
SOUTH ELKHORN and LOWER CANE RUN MONITORING DATA 
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SOUTH ELKHORN and LOWER CANE RUN MONITORING DATA

302 gpd
43 ppm

431 ppm
302 gpd

$/d

CONTROL POINT SENSITIVITY?

Ave H2S
Max H2S

2025 Ave Dose
2025 Ave Cost

Motus iDS

WH1_944   (2 - medium low sensitivity)
OTHER INFO:

Summary for JANUARY '25:
Dosage  

(Control Point: WH1_944 - has not changed .)  
Note: ARV 15 is the high point.
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South Elkhorn PS - Chemical Dosages vs H2S

Chemical Dosage Average H2S

Highest Ave 
H2S = 817 ppm

Max H2S > 1100 ppm       
Jul - Dec '23, Jul & Aug 

'24 & Dec '24

Nitrates off  9/9 -10/1/24. 
Other Chem tested.

134 gpd
3 ppm

81 ppm
134 gpd

$/d

Summary for JANUARY '25:

LCR_ARV8 
OTHER INFO:

CONTROL POINT SENSITIVITY?

(Control Point: LCR_ARV8 since 8/14/24.  

2025 Ave Dose
2025 Ave Cost

Motus iDS

Dosage  
Ave H2S
Max H2S
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Lower Cane Run PS - Chemical Dosages vs H2S

Dosages Average H2S

Max H2S = 1100 
(Sep '24)

Highest Ave H2S = 144 
(Sep '24)

LCR_ ARV9 ARV 
5

LCR_ ARV8
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APPENDIX C  
SOUTH ELKHORN PS PUMP RUN CYCLES 
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SOUTH ELKHORN PS PUMP RUN CYCLES
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APPENDIX D  
LOWER CANE RUN PS PUMP RUN CYCLES 
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LOWER CANE RUN PS PUMP RUN CYCLES
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APPENDIX E  
SANDERSVILLE PS PUMP RUN CYCLES 
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SANDERSVILLE PS PUMP RUN CYCLES
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APPENDIX F  
SANDERSVILLE PS DRAW DOWN DATA 
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SANDERSVILLE PS DRAW DOWN DATA
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USP History and Qualifications 
USP Technologies was founded as US Peroxide in 1992 and has been an industry leader of full service 
odor and corrosion control programs for nearly 30 years. We solve challenging odor and corrosion 
control issues in collection systems of various sizes, at pump stations, headworks, primary clarifiers and 
sludge storage and handling processes. Our treatment philosophy is “technology agnostic” with a focus 
on finding the best fit technologies for our customers. Our experienced odor control experts work 
closely with our customers on taking a holistic look at their treatment system to develop the most cost-
effective solutions. 

USP employs over 70 full time professionals that exclusively focus on solving odor, corrosion and 
wastewater treatment problems. Our highly specialized experts act as an extension to your team, 
providing you access to a local territory manager, who is supported by field technicians and lab 
personnel, chemists, engineers, application specialists, logistics managers, as well as an R&D 
department that is working closely with multiple university partners on consistently developing new 
technologies that will further drive future cost savings and improved treatment performance. USP 
currently manages over 350 chemical applications, treating billions of gallons of water per day. 

USP does not manufacture chemicals, nor are we tied to one technology of choice. Our name was 
changed from US Peroxide to USP Technologies to reflect our wider chemical offering, which includes 
nitrates, iron salts, SulFeLox®, H2O2, PRI-TECH™ (Peroxide regenerated iron technologies), chlorite 
oxidizers, biofilm removal services and peracetic acid for disinfection. Over the years we have 
developed excellent relationships with multiple chemical suppliers and our customers benefit directly 
from our buying power and strong supply position in the market. Our multi-
technology approach often gives customers a lever to switch between 
technologies and protect themselves from rate hikes of individual 
chemicals. 

USP is part of the ChemTreat Group operating within Veralto Corporation’s 
Water Quality Platform. Veralto itself is an $5B company, traded on the 
NYSE under VLTO, and includes industry leading water technology 
companies Hach, McCrometer, and Trojan Technologies, among others. 
Being part of the Veralto Family gives USP the stability and financial backing 
to put millions of dollars of high quality capital equipment into the field for the direct benefit and use 
of our customers.  

Overall, USP provides the highest degree of experience, technology and operations capability available 
in the industry for delivering a reliable and cost effective supply of specialty chemistries, engineered 
equipment storage and dosing systems and applications assistance.   Our robust toolbox of treatment 
technologies sets us apart in the industry and allows our application experts to custom-tailor best-fit 
solutions to meet our customers’ needs and budgets. 

We have assembled an experienced service team for this program.  Our full-service program includes 
all of the necessary equipment and will be managed with a high level of transparency to ensure 
complete satisfaction for the Lexington-Fayette. 
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USP Core Values 

When you work with USP you will be part of our team and experience our dedication to our core values. 

• Collaboration – We believe that “The Best Team Wins”, which is why we put the most skilled 
and engaged team in the field to execute your programs. However, the definition of “team” 
does not end with USP. We build teams with our customers for an open flow of information, 
where we provide timely and accurate field data that enables our customer to make the right 
decisions regarding program direction and setting and achieving their budget and performance 
goals. 

 
• Responsiveness – Our teams’ most important responsibility is to listen to our customers. Our 

strong customer focus helps us create innovative solutions to address our customers’ needs. 
Our access to and expertise in multiple technologies, as well as planned investment in stock 
equipment systems, provides our customers with expedient access to resources needed to 
address collection system or plant treatment challenges. 

 
• Value – USP’s depth of knowledge of odor & corrosion control issues and general wastewater 

treatment problems along with our access to multiple technologies allows us to apply “best fit” 
technologies to ensure our programs deliver better performance at equal or lower cost than 
current options. Our drive for continuous improvement keeps us ahead of our competitors, 
creating lasting value for our customers. 

 
• Technology Access – One of the most important ways we drive continuous improvement is 

through innovation that makes a difference. USP is the recognized leader in the application of a 
broad range of wastewater treatment technologies and has proven to be an innovator and 
market channel for new technologies. A partnership with USP provides access to currently 
proven technologies while also being positioned to partner on leading edge “new to market” 
technologies as well.   
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USP focuses on chemical applications, specifically for the treatment of water, wastewater, soil and air. 
Over the past 20 years, USP has emerged as the industry leader in providing performance-driven, full-
service odor, corrosion, and nutrient control programs for municipal and industrial customers across the 
US and Canada. In total, we presently manage about 200 chemical applications that treat close to 1.0 BGD. 

Logistics 
 
USP is the largest hydrogen peroxide supplier for environmental applications in the North America. Our 

Supply Chain sources, manages inventories, and delivers a wide range of proprietary and program 

products including hydrogen peroxide, iron salts, nitrates, chlorite oxidants, peracetic acid, and biofilm 

removal services. The USP Supply Chain manages >7000 deliveries annually through our proprietary tank 

level monitoring and chemical order management system. The USP Supply Chain also supports USP's 

Emergency Rapid Response applications for supplemental D.O., odor control, remediation and various 

other municipal and industrial applications by sourcing and delivering various chemistries within 72 hours.  

 

USP Technologies Supply Chain will manage all local / national terminal and delivery truck requirements 

including monitoring tank levels, automated replenishment, and the additional operational services 

otherwise necessary to deliver the program safely and reliably and in a manner that will satisfy and 

comply with the management requirements, equipment and service specifications and treatment goals 

as set forth and outlined in the RFP.  

 

USP successfully delivers a worry free supply chain solution to small, medium, and large scale customers 

offering a range of single to multi-technology based programs to municipalities throughout the country 

including other similar customers to the Lexington-Fayette such as City of Baton Rouge, LA; JEA 

(Jacksonville, FL); City of Bakerfield, CA; and City of Phoenix. 

 
Engineering Services 
 
USP Technologies (USP) Engineering & Equipment Services (EES) specializes in the design and installation 

of bulk and mini-bulk chemical handling systems to serve the municipal, industrial, remediation and 

drinking water markets. Our ability to provide proven, value-added, comprehensive full-service solutions 

is unique within the industry. Our project managers and engineers work closely with our customers and 

our application experts to provide efficient, cost-effective and high quality turn-key chemical 

management solutions, whether the requirement is fewer than 5 gallons per day or 5,000 gallons per 

day. Engineers are available for design support and consultation for all chemical handling requirements: 

• Turn-key Systems • Installation, Startup and Maintenance • Custom Design and Fabrication • Safety 

Compliance • Bulk & Mini-Bulk Solutions 

 

USP’s turn-key programs include installation, testing, start-up and all equipment system maintenance. 

At start-up, all metering pumps are calibrated and calibration curves are provided for easy reference. As 

part of the full-service program, each system is regularly inspected and checked throughout the contract 

period. USP develops customized preventive maintenance programs for all systems provided by USP. 

Highly skilled and trained Field Service Technicians perform required preventive or routine maintenance 
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and keep documentation of completion. USP also performs annual system inspections and annual 

refresher safety training. Our field service personnel can respond within 24 hours to address equipment 

issues and many times are considered integral "embedded" members of our customer organizations. 

 

 

Corporate Office Information 

5640 Cox Road 

Glen Allen, VA 23060 

Telephone: 404.352.6070 

 

Number of Employees:  65 

Number of Customers: 300 including 600 discrete delivery locations 

Annual Sales:   $60 Million 
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Organization Chart 

USP Staff Roles for Lexington-Fayette 

In support of the program, USP Technologies is committed to providing a highly qualified and 

experienced team of individuals with a proven track record of success in working together at programs 

of similar size and scope and that is dedicated to the safe, reliable and cost-effective operation and 

management of the program to meet the stated specifications and performance objectives.   

The team that would specifically serve Lexington-Fayette consists of a qualified and experienced group 

of individuals with a proven track record of success in working together on similar programs and 

projects.   

The table below presents the contact information, roles, experience, and responsibilities of the team 

leaders. A larger regional support team will also be made available to Lexington-Fayette throughout the 

duration of the program.  

TITLE EXPERIENCE 

Eastern Regional Business 

Manager Dan Kile 

• The Business Manager has primary responsibility for 
ensuring resources (manpower, technical skills and 
equipment 
investment) are available to meet SDCCS program needs 

• Provides interface and access to cross-functional teams for 
quick and efficient identification and evaluation of 
equipment or 
programs that might benefit SDCCS 

• Chemical Engineer, +15 years in wastewater 

Program Manager 

Samuel Kohl 

• Primary customer reporting responsibility and overall 
program management during ongoing operations 

• Oversee and direct the execution of all application and 
technical needs 

• Oversee and monitor program performance and 
compliance (QA/QC auditing) 

• Advise alternative solutions to existing problems, 
incl. troubleshooting applications 

• 8 years in wastewater 

Business Development/Technical 
Advisor 

 
Ian Watson 

• Manage all commercial issues during initial 
program implementation 

• Make technical application recommendations 
• Oversee full service program and coordinate 

commercial elements during initial program 
implementation 

• Resource for additional treatment needs 
BS Chemical Engineering, over 20 years in wastewater 
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Engineering & HSE Manager Greg 
Kubik 

• Oversees safe system implementation & commissioning 
• Site safety analysis 
• Manager & administrator of USP’s Health, 

Safety & Environmental program 
• System design, compliance & security issues management 

Certified Construction Management, 17 years 
in wastewater 
 

Logistic Manager Ricardo Joseph • Assist the Program Manager in manage daily tank levels, 
monitor chemical dosage 

• Place orders as required to meet program dosing 
targets and performance objectives 

• Monitors & documents equipment performance 
Troubleshoots existing system functions 

• Emergency Response 
Monitoring and sampling of vapor phase treatment 
equipment for performance 

Field Service Technician - 
Equipment and 
Maintenance 

 
John Kenny 

• Periodic system maintenance during or in addition to 
routine site inspections 

• Executes preventative maintenance on equipment. 
• Monitors and documents equipment performance and 

facility information. 
• Troubleshoots existing system functions 
• Maintains site cleanliness and site safety 

Emergency Response 
Service 
Manager Justin 
Goyette 

• Project management for new installations or larger 
equipment upgrades or system modifications 

• System pre-installation inspection 
• Lead system installation team on site 
• Equipment maintenance, quality and safety control 

Applications 
Specialist Michael 
Ratley 

• Provides regular and frequent interface with chemical 
supplier – partners to ensure reliable chemical inventory 

• Daily inventory monitoring and delivery scheduling 
• Monitor systems and provide advance notification of out 

of spec situations 
• Communicate delivery variances in schedule 
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TITLE EXPERIENCE 

Manager, Supply Chain & Quality 

Michael Engram 

• Monitors and manages USP distribution fleet 
service and terminal performance 

• Manages ChemWatch Control Center employees and 
supports logistics activities 

• Primary resource for invoicing and chemical 
delivery reconciliation 

• Integrates program with commercial objectives and 
customer invoicing 

• Leads chemical supply QA/QC program 
• BS Mechanical Engineering, 25 years in wastewater 

VP of Technology and Program 

Development 

John Walton 

Technical Advisory Committee 

• Ensure the corporate level commitment of resources 
required to successfully operate the program, meet 
contractual obligations, and satisfy customer needs 

• Provide high level program and project 
management and oversight 

• Provide commercial support and response to 
account and contractual issues 

• Ensure technology selection is optimized and current 
• Provide oversight and regular review of 

treatment and operational performance and 
compliance goals 

• 30+ combined years in wastewater 

East Regional Business Manager 

Dan Kile 

Territory Manager 

Samuel Kohl 

Manager, Engineering & 

Equipment Services 

Leo DoCarmo 

General Manager 

Jordan Butler 
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USP-Proposed Chemical 
 

Ferrous Chloride – Iron salts have been used in collection system odor control since the adoption of the 

clean water act. It is the most efficient treatment for large, high flow lines. It operates by creating the 

FeS bond to render sulfide inert within the force main. They have also historically provided better  

performance vs other treatment options in long retention time scenarios.  

SulFelox®– USP Technologies buffered iron salt solution. Operates in a similar manner to ferrous 

chloride but maintains a low hazard rating per NFP diamond. Additionally, SulFelox® maintains a pH 

above 4 which improves binding efficiency and decreases the possibility for pH suppression. 

Program Narratives:  

Case Studies (provided upon request) have proven that SulFelox® buffered iron salt can be used to 

replace calcium nitrate at a volume ratio of 3:1 with equal or improved performance controlling 

hydrogen sulfide. However, with the South Elkhorn PS specifically, the current nitrate feed has not been 

able to control sulfide to a level that USP would be comfortable making assumptions based on. All dose 

rate estimates for this program are based around controlling the totality of sulfide reaching the 

discharge point each day, which the current program is failing to do. Based on the configuration of this 

force main, an Iron salt solution is better suited to provide H2S control downstream and will be more 

efficient in its treatment. USP is leaning on predictive sulfide modelling and is basing our dose rate 

estimates based on approximately 300lbs of H2S per day at the discharge manhole. This is very likely a 

conservative estimate and after the initial conditioning period we would expect the dose rate to 

decrease significantly for the second half of the trial.  

 

 South Elkhorn (GPD) Lower Cane Run PS (GPD) 

SulFelox® 400 50 

Ferrous Chloride 450 60 
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USP Technologies-Proposed Equipment 

USP Technologies (USP) specializes in the design and installation of bulk and mini-bulk chemical handling 
systems to serve the municipal, industrial, remediation and drinking water markets. Our ability to 
provide proven, value-added, comprehensive full-service solutions is unique within the industry. Our 
engineers work closely with our application experts to provide efficient, cost-effective and high quality 
turn-key chemical management solutions, whether the requirement is fewer than five gallons per day or 
5,000 gallons per day. Engineers are available for design support and consultation for all chemical 
handling requirements: 

➢ Turn-key Systems

➢ ChemWatch ™ ACS

➢ Installation, Startup and Maintenance

➢ Custom Design and Fabrication

➢ Safety Compliance

➢ Bulk & Mini-Bulk Solutions
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Safety Data Sheet 
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References 

JEA (Jacksonville, FL) 

Contact Name Katie Templeton 

Contact Title Collection System Manager 

Location 21. W. Church Street, Jacksonville, FL 32202

Telephone 904-882-1815

Email tempkl@jea.com

Servicing Date Since 2018 $10 mil

Service Provided • Chemical deliveries:  Ordering, scheduling, delivery and receiving of
chemicals to 32 chemical feed sites throughout the JEA system for the
prevention of hydrogen sulfide-induced odors and corrosion.

• Chemical feed systems:  Supply of required equipment and
maintenance of the systems to ensure proper dosing, including
regularly scheduled preventative maintenance.

• Safety Requirements:  Supply of eyewash/shower modules for
emergencies and wash-down purposes.

• Hydrogen Sulfide Testing:  Monitoring of 19 hydrogen sulfide control
points to ensure sulfides are within parameters set by JEA.  This
includes monthly aqueous sulfide sampling and atmospheric (H2S)
sessions recorded with OdaLog instruments that provide continuous
recording of airborne sulfides.

• Monthly Reports:  Submittal of a detailed report each month, including
delivery totals, maintenance performed, sulfide data and other
activities performed by USP.

City of Bakersfield 

Contact Name Kevin Peoples 

Contact Title Operations Manager 

Location 1501 Truxtun Avenue Bakersfield, CA 93301 

Telephone 661-326-3767

Email kpeoples@bakersfieldcity.us 

Servicing Date Since 2021 

Service Provided Full-service system-wide odor and corrosion program utilizing sulfelox® at four 
(4) pump stations. In 2021, USP converted eight (8) underperforming calcium
nitrate sites to Sulfelox® at a cost savings over $300k annually.
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City of Phoenix 

Contact Name Rojelio Estrella 

Contact Title Water Services Superintendent, Wastewater Collection Division 

Location 200 W. Washington Street Phoenix, AZ 85003 

Telephone 602-262-1864

Email Rojelio.estrella@phoenix.gov 

Servicing Date Since 2006 

Service Provided The full service hydrogen peroxide (H2O2) program for performing PRI-SC 
(peroxide 
regenerated iron sulfide control) on the Southern Avenue Interceptor (SAI) 
began in 2006, regenerating the iron flowing in from 2 locations in Mesa, one 
from Tempe and one from 23rd Ave & Southern. In May 2012 the Bioxide feed 
system at LS 40 was replaced with Ferrous Chloride, treating the flow into the 
SAI at 48th St and supplementing additional iron to improve odor control in the 
SAI. The USP Program includes chemicals, engineered storage and handling 
equipment and technical application expertise. USP personnel operates and 
maintains the equipment, providing performance reports and dosing 
recommendations to the customer. 
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Pricing 

Price Proposal Form 

Name of 

Product 

Equipment plus Mobilization / 

Demobilization Price 

($/site) 

Chemical Solution 

Unit Price 

($/unit) 

Specify Price 

Units 

($/Gallon or 

$/Pound) 

Ferrous Chloride $10,000 $3.98 $/gallon 

SulFelox® $10,000 $7.97 $/gallon 
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Exceptions 

U.S Peroxide appreciates the opportunity to conduct business with Lexington – Fayette. To help provide

Lexington - Fayette with the best and most cost-effective products and services we can offer, we

respectfully request the opportunity to negotiate reasonable terms and conditions prior to finalizing the

contract.
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Appendix A-Good Faith Efforts-Response 

1) Please mention that in the list of bidder/proposer having a contractual relationship with in the 
last two years. We have a current contract with SOL engineering who is certified in the state of 
Tennessee.

2) Describe the steps Bidder/Proposer took to solicit small and disadvantaged businesses, including 
MBEs, WBEs, VOSBs, and SDVOSBs, for subcontracting opportunities for this procurement.

a. “USP Technologies reached out to multiple chemical providers on behalf of a project 
with Nashville MWS, however, made the request for support projects in the 
surrounding area specifically with Iron salts coming out of Louisville, KY. Additional 
requests have been made to these companies to support our efforts in Lexington, KY, 
however, due to the deadline we have not received any feedback, but would be happy 
to follow up with additional correspondence as it comes in. Also, USP Technologies 
anticipates the need for installation assistance and will reach out to companies for 
equipment supply and installation support upon pre-qualification of our services. We 
share Lexington’s view on commitment to the Minority Business Enterprise Program 
and will take additional steps to ensure there is inclusion.”
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Appendix B- Good Faith Efforts-Documentation 
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What to Expect from USP Technologies 
USP provides solutions that lower your operating costs, preserve your assets, and maximize their value. We focus 

on these core areas in order to deliver the best service possible: 

Service Excellence 

With our highly-trained, in-house workforce, you can trust that we’ll provide you with services that increase 

efficiencies and lower your operating expenses—all while maintaining a standard of service excellence. 

Breadth of Services 

We’ll provide you with an unrivaled range of facilities solutions that will keep your properties safe, clean, 

comfortable, and odor free. 

Deep Industry Expertise 

From our national office to our local branches, we’ve made sure our workforce understands your industry. After 

all, in over 20 years of service, we’ve developed the expertise to make our solutions work best for you. 

Technology-Enabled Workforce 

Your facilities will be serviced with the support of innovative technology solutions that will simplify service 

delivery and allow for greater transparency. 

We Are Ready to Continue Building Value for Lexington – Fayette 
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